
 
 

1 
 

 Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

 Nicole Canada, DC 
 President 
Xavier Martinez, DC 
 Vice President 

 James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 

  

Morgan Rovetti, DC 
Member 

Margaret Colucci, DC 
Member 

Christian L. Augustin, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Reza R. Ayazi, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING/REGULATION WORKSHOP 

 
DATE:   Thursday, October 13, 2022  TIME:  8:30 a.m. 
 
LOCATION:   Video Conference Call via Zoom 
 
Instructions for attending conference call:  
 
Topic: CPBN Meeting 
Time: Oct 13, 2022 08:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89974380980?pwd=ZDRwSmJuMy81bGJBaEg5WW5lSUZOZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 899 7438 0980 
Passcode: 833356 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,89974380980#,,,,*833356# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,89974380980#,,,,*833356# US (Houston) 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 899 7438 0980 
Passcode: 833356 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcl1c6Pl3q 

 
NOTE:  ALL AGENDA ITEMS ARE FOR DISCUSSION AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.   AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF ORDER, 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


October 13, 2022 

COMBINED FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD, OR PULLED OR REMOVED 
FROM THE AGENDA AT ANY TIME. 

AGENDA 
 

Call to order - determine quorum present.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance – Dr. Martinez 
Statement of Purpose – Dr. Rovetti 
 
Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each Board 
meeting; 

B. Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so long as the 
request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt ongoing Board business; 

C. Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 
reasonable time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments based 
upon viewpoint; 

D. No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment until the 
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken. 

E. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial 
proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the Board may refuse 
to consider public comment as per NRS 233B.126.  

 
Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 
The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or more items to 
accomplish business in the most efficient manner.  An item may be removed from the agenda or 
discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any time. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the July 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 4   Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

A. Strategies 360 – Dan Musgrove 
 
Agenda Item 5 - Discussion and potential action regarding the application for licensure of John 
Parker, DC (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.033 to consider the 
character alleged character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental 
health of Dr. Parker). – For possible action.   
 
Agenda Item 6 NCA Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 7 NCC Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 8 Board Counsel Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 9 Discussion and potential action regarding the question under NAC 634.430(1)(b) 
of when a guardian or co-guardian is acting within his or her authority to consent to having a 

2 
 



October 13, 2022 

minor in his or her care evaluated and treated – For possible action.   
 
Agenda Item 10 Discussion regarding the International Academy of Neuromusculoskeletal 
Medicine’s (IANM) recognition/name change of Chiropractic Orthopedists. – No action. 
 
Agenda Item 11  Discussion and potential action regarding the American Chiropractic 
Association’s efforts to support federal legislation – For possible action 
 
Agenda Item 12 Public Workshop: Preparation and potential revisions to the Chiropractic Assistant 
program. – For possible action 
 
Agenda Item 13 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  
Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is no 
violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the matter further 
– For possible action. 
 

A. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
B. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
C. Complaint 21-03S (Canada) 
D. Complaint 21-29N (Canada) 
E. Complaint 21-31S (Colucci) 
F. Complaint 22-08S (Canada) 
G. Complaint 22-09S (Canada) 
H. Complaint 22-10S (Overland) 
I. Complaint 22-11S (Overland) 
J. Complaint 22-12S (Overland) 

 
Agenda Item 14 FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 

A. Overview -  District I & IV Meeting   
B. Other FCLB/NBCE matters. 

 
Agenda Item 15 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to NRS 634 
and NAC 634– For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 16  Discussion and potential action regarding the need for a Board lobbyist. – For 
possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 17 Discussion and potential action regarding contracting with an investigator to 
investigate the complaints on behalf of the Board. – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 18 Discussion and potential action regarding Board members to obtain continuing 
education. – For possible action. 

A. Allow CE for attendance at FCLB/NBCE conference(s). 
B. Allow CE for sitting on the Board. 
C. Allow Consumer Member-Attorney CLE for attendance at FCLB/NBCE/FARB 

conference(s) 
 

3 
 



October 13, 2022 

 
 
Agenda Item 19 Discussion and potential action regarding the interpretation of NAC 
634.348(2)(f) and what was intended to be authorized as “assisting the supervising licensee with 
an examination of a patient.” – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 20 Committee Reports  

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Overland) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 

 
Agenda Item 21– Discussion and potential action regarding a contract for audit services with 
Bertrand & Associates. – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 22 Discussion and potential action regarding purchasing Employee Bond-Crime 
coverage – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 23 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
D. DC licenses to applicants who passed the examination from July to September 2022 – No 

action. 
E. CA certificates to applicants who passed the examination on September 13, 2022. – No 

action. 
F. Board Member Checks - No action.   

 
Agenda Item 24 Financial Status Reports: 

A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison as of May 31, 2022 – No action. 
F. Budget to Actual at May 31, 2022 – No action. 
G. Licensee database update – No action. 

 
Agenda Item 25 Discussion and potential action regarding Board member signatures on the wall 
certificates for chiropractic physicians and chiropractic assistants – For possible action.  
 
Agenda Item 26 Discussion and possible action regarding the staff evaluation and potential 
adjustment of financial compensation for Julie Strandberg  - For possible action 
 
Agenda Item 27 Public Interest Comments – No action. 
In accordance with NRS 241.020 Public Comment will be taken prior to the adjournment of the 
meeting. 
 

4 
 



October 13, 2022 

Agenda Item 28 Adjournment – For possible action. 
 
 
This agenda posted October 7, 2022 at the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada, 4600 Kietzke 
Lane, Suite M245, Reno, Nevada 89502; State Library and Archives, 100 North Stewart St., Carson 
City, Nevada 89701; CPBN Website:  http://chirobd.nv.gov; and Notice.nv.gov.  
A request for copies of an agenda and/or a supporting document or documents may be obtained 
from: 

 
Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 

Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 
775-688-1921 

 
by picking up the document(s), or by mailing a written request to: 

Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 
Attention:  Julie Strandberg  

4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245 
Reno, Nevada 89502 

 
by faxing a request to:  Julie Strandberg at:  Facsimile No.:  775-688-1920 
 
or by e-mailing a request to Julie Strandberg at:  chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 
 

 
 
Note:  “A request for notice lapses 6 months after it is made”: NRS 241.020.3(b).  Mailing a copy 
of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board meeting agendas will not be continued unless a request for 
reinstatement on the mailing list is submitted in writing every 6 months.  

 
 

The Board is in receipt of your attached continuing education certificate(s).  Please be advised that the 
Board’s rules were revised as it relates to submitting continuing education certificates to the 
Board.  Licensees are no longer required to submit their CE certificates to the Board unless you are 
notified by the Board that you were selected in the random CE audit.  If you are selected, you will be 
notified (following the renewal period) by receipt of a mailed postcard, as well as an email following the 
renewal process.   Board staff will no longer retain copies of continuing education 
certificates; however, you may upload your CE certificates during renewals.  Should you upload your 
certificates to your record, please know that it is the responsibility of the licensee to also retain copies of 
their CE certificates for their records.  
  

 

5 
 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments – No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each 
Board meeting; 

B.  Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so 
long as the request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt 
ongoing Board business; 

C.   Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 
reasonable  time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments 
based upon viewpoint; 

 D.    No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an 
item upon which action may be taken. 

E. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-
judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the Board may refuse to consider public comment as per NRS 
233B.126.  

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The public may speak to the Board about any topic not 
on the agenda but no action may be taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Agenda Item 1   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 2 Approval of Agenda – For possible action. 

 The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two 
or more items to accomplish business in the most efficient manner. An item may 
be removed from the agenda or discussion may be delayed relating to an item at 
any time. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Agenda items may be addressed out of order to 
accommodate those present. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 2   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE: Agenda Item 3 Approval of the July 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes. - For 

possible action. 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Approve the minutes of the July14, 2022 meeting 
as drafted. 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 3 



1 
 

  Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

 Nicole Canada, DC 
 President 
Xavier Martinez, DC 
 Vice President 

 James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 

  

Morgan Rovetti, DC 
Member 

Margaret Colucci, DC 
Member 

Christian L. Augustin, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Reza R. Ayazi, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
A meeting of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board was held on Thursday, July 14, 2022 by 

zoom conference.  
    
 The following Board members were present at roll call: 
   Margaret Colucci, DC. President 

Nicole Canada, DC, Vice President 
   James T. Overland Sr., DC, Secretary-Treasurer 

Christian L. Augustin, Esq., Consumer Member 
Reza R. Ayazi, Esq., Consumer Member    

 
 Also, present were Board Counsel, Louis Ling, Esq. and Executive Director, Julie 
Strandberg.   
 

President, Dr. Canada determined a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

Dr. Overland led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  Dr. Colucci stated the Purpose 
of the Board. 
 
 
Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 

There were no public comments. 
 
Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 
The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or more 
items to accomplish business in the most efficient manner.  An item may be removed from the 
agenda or discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any time. 

Dr. Colucci moved to approve the agenda.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed 
with all in favor. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the April 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 
Dr. Overland moved to approve the April 14, 2022 Board meeting minutes.  Dr. Colucci 

seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.   
 
Agenda Item 4   Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


July 14, 2022 

Dan Musgrove with Strategies 360 was present and stated that the primary election was 
held on June 14, 2022 and shared the individuals running for constitutional office, senate and 
assembly.  Mr. Musgrove confirmed that the deadlines to submit a bill to the 2023 legislative 
session are August 1 and December 10.  Dr. Musgrove stated that the interim committees will be 
wrapping up their work throughout August. 

 
Agenda Item 6 Discussion and potential action regarding the Matter of Michael Milman, 
DC (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241 to consider the 
character, alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. Milman.) For possible 
action.   
 Dr. Canada confirmed with Mr. Ling that the Board did not need to go into closed session.  
Dr. Canada stated that Dr. Michael Milman is before the Board to request that his probation be 
terminated.  Mr. Ling shared that Dr. Milman had completed the stipulations per the November 9, 
2020 Board order with the exception of probation and practice monitoring.  Mr. Ling shared Dr. 
Milman’s discipline by the California Board of Chiropractic Examiners.  Mr. Ling stated that Dr. 
Milman has gained employment with the Joint, which activates the practice monitoring.  Mr. Ling 
stated that he, Dr. Colucci and Julie have been working with Dr. Milman to implement the 
agreement for practice monitoring with Affiliated Monitors.  Dr. Milman stated that the insurance 
fraud case in California has been dismissed and expunged and requested that he be removed from 
probation.  Dr. Canada asked Dr. Milman why he believes the Board should terminate his 
probation when he hasn’t satisfied the monitoring piece.  Dr. Milman indicated that he did 
complete everything he was told to do and stated that the monitoring company has a problem, not 
him.  Mr. Ling explained that Dr. Milman and/or the Joint provided a counter-offer to the 
agreement from Affiliated Monitors, however there are not any negotiations.  Dr. Overland stated 
that the request to remove Dr. Milman’s probation is pre-mature and until we obtain feedback 
from Affiliated Monitors the order remain as executed.  Dr. Canada agreed with Dr. Overland, 
and stated that once the Board is in receipt of quarterly reports the Board could revisit the 
termination of Dr. Milman’s probation.  Mr. Augustin clarified that the Board order is asking for 
quarterly reports, which the Board has not received.  Dr. Canada moved that the Board deny Dr. 
Milman’s request to terminate his probation.  Mr. Augustin seconded, and the motion passed with 
all in favor.  Dr. Colucci recused herself as the investigating board member. 
 
Agenda Item 5 Discussion and potential action regarding the consideration of the NBCE 
taking over the chiropractic physicians jurisprudence examination – For possible action.   
 Dr. Jason Jaeger was present and introduced Dr. Bruce Shotts, Vice President of test 
development at NBCE.  Dr. Jaeger indicated that this is a follow-up to a previous discussion, 
asking the Board to consider turning the DC jurisprudence exam over to the NBCE to improve the 
psychometric analysis, the viability of the exam and remove the burden from staff.    Dr. Jaeger 
stated that the NBCE can conduct an analysis of the current exam and bring the results back to the 
Board and work collaboratively to make a recommendation on the best product to bring forward 
at no cost to the Board. All time spent will be absorbed by the NBCE.  Dr. Jaeger stated that he 
understands that the Board has concerns with respect to the scores not being available 
immediately, and confirmed that the results can be provided within a week.   Dr. Jaeger stated that 
the NBCE can perform the same analysis on the CA exams at no cost to the Board.  Dr. Overland 
stated that he had a previous discussion with Dr. Shotts regarding whether the NBCE could 
conduct an analysis of the CA exam.  Dr. Shotts confirmed that the NBCE is able to conduct an 



July 14, 2022 

analysis of the CA exam and provide recommendations and then the Board could decide whether 
to allow the NBCE to administer the CA exam.  Dr. Overland recommended that the DC and CA 
exams be psychometrically analyzed prior to the board deciding whether to allow the NBCE to 
take over the administering of the exams.  Dr. Jaeger confirmed that this is not a profit situation 
that the NBCE is trying to pursue, but a service to the board.  Dr. Colucci asked what the NBCE 
charges for the law exam and Dr. Shotts indicated that the exams hosted on the NBCE servers are 
$55.00.  Dr. Colucci asked if the Board entered into a contract with the NBCE could the NBCE 
guarantee that the fees would not increase?  Dr. Shotts stated he cannot confirm that the exam fee 
would not increase, however the exam fee will not increase during a contract period.   

Dr. Overland made a motion that the NBCE conduct a psychometric analysis on the DC 
law exam and both of the CA exams and re-write the inappropriate questions to make the exam 
sound.  Dr. Colucci seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.   
 
Agenda Item 7 - Discussion and potential action regarding the application for licensure of 
Corazon Murillo-Lanyon, DC (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 
241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. 
Lanyon). – For possible action.   
 Dr. Canada confirmed with Mr. Ling that the Board did not need to go into closed session.  
Dr. Canada welcomed Dr. Lanyon and asked Mr. Ling to provide an overview of Dr. Lanyon’s 
history as it relates to her discipline with this Board and the California Board of Chiropractic 
Examiners.  Mr. Ling referenced NRS 634.204, NRS 622A and NRS 622A.410, which are the 
laws that the Board is required to follow as it considers Dr. Lanyon’s application for DC 
licensure.   Mr. Ling provided Dr. Lanyon’s history with the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of 
Nevada resulting in revocation as well as her history with the California Chiropractic Board of 
Examiners resulting in revocation.  Dr. Canada asked Dr. Lanyon if she concurred with the 
statements made by Mr. Ling and she indicated that she did.  Dr. Canada asked Dr. Lanyon if she 
would like to speak.  Dr. Lanyon thanked the Board for giving her this opportunity.  Dr. Lanyon 
stated that she believes that the California Board revoked her license after confirming that Nevada 
had revoked her license.   Dr. Lanyon stated that she abided by all requirements of the Nevada 
application and feels that she has paid her dues, by completing the NBCE Part IV examination, 
settling the two California consumer complaints, and as far as her character she has not done 
anything wrong since the revocation of her California license.  Dr. Lanyon stated that her 
revocation was not due to harming anyone, but because of the advertisement by her marketing 
agency.  Dr. Lanyon asked that the Board give her application careful consideration and if the 
Board feels conditions are required, she would be happy to comply.  Dr. Canada asked the Board 
if they had any questions.  Dr. Overland asked Dr. Lanyon if she was currently practicing.  Dr. 
Lanyon stated that she has not practiced since her license was revoked in California and is 
currently a healthcare consultant for doctors.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if she owns Scottsdale 
Integrated Health Center and she stated that she is part owner.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if she 
provided any chiropractic care for any medical disorders and Dr. Lanyon indicated that she does 
not, but she speaks to the patients to see if they can be a patient of Scottsdale Integrated Health 
Center.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon what type of licensure the doctors hold and she indicated 
that they have chiropractic physician licenses.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if the chiropractic 
physicians are holding themselves out to treat metabolic disorders and Dr. Lanyon stated yes.  Mr. 
Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if it was her belief that she can reverse and cure diabetes, and she 
indicated no.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if it was her belief that she can cure type II diabetes 



July 14, 2022 

and she stated that the body cures or heals itself from within, as well as other metabolic disorders 
as long as the doctor is providing the proper coaching and nutrition.  Mr. Ayazi confirmed that the 
doctors at Scottsdale Integrated Health Center are providing chiropractic care in an effort to help 
the body self-heal for all sorts of diseases including metabolic diseases and diabetes type I and II 
and Dr. Lanyon stated type II only.  Mr. Ayazi asked the Board if chiropractic care can treat type 
II diabetes and cure and reverse diabetes.  Dr. Canada stated that in her opinion, no, however she 
stated that there are chiropractors that would disagree.  Dr. Overland asked Dr. Lanyon if the 
doctors in the Scottsdale facility have advanced degrees and she indicated that they did.  Dr. 
Lanyon stated that she is board certified from the Institute of Functional Medicine.  Dr. Overland 
stated that many chiropractic physicians who have advanced training degrees treat metabolic 
disorders as well as other disorders in the body.  Dr. Canada asked Dr. Lanyon if she is currently 
licensed in Arizona, and if she is presenting herself as a doctor and Dr. Lanyon stated that she is 
not licensed, and is presenting herself as a consultant.  Dr. Overland asked Mr. Ling if a non-
licensed doctor can own a health facility in Arizona and Mr. Ling indicated that he is not familiar 
with Arizona law.  Dr. Lanyon stated that she confirmed with the Arizona Chiropractic Board of 
Examiners that an individual does not have to be a licensed practitioner to own a healthcare 
facility.  Dr. Canada stated that her concern is that Dr. Lanyon may be practicing as a chiropractic 
physician with a functional medicine certification, without a valid chiropractic license in the state 
of Arizona.  Dr.  Lanyon stated that she does not practice chiropractic, and tells the patients that 
she is Cora Lanyon, Director of Admissions for Dr. X.  Dr. Lanyon stated that as a consultant, she 
is able to conduct the patient’s initial evaluation and take their health history, but does not 
recommend any type of treatment.  Dr. Canada asked if any other Board members are concerned 
with this.  Dr. Overland asked Dr. Lanyon if she has ever recommended that a patient not receive 
care during the consultation and she stated that she has.  Dr. Lanyon said that she determines 
whether the patient is a good fit for the care the doctor has recommended, for example, exercise, 
diet, etc. and if they are not willing to follow the doctors’ recommendations, she notifies the 
patient that they will not receive care.  Dr. Overland shared Dr. Canada’s concerns stating that 
this appears to be a slippery slope as to whether Dr. Lanyon is practicing some degree of 
chiropractic in Arizona.  Dr. Lanyon stated that she speaks with all patients virtually and then 
refers them to the office where the doctor is practicing and indicated that she works with patients 
and doctors in outside of Arizona.  Mr. Augustin asked Dr. Lanyon why her license was revoked 
in California.  Dr. Lanyon stated that an MD filed an advertisement complaint, another complaint 
was for the sign on the top of her building that stated, “Diabetic Specialty Clinic,” and there were 
two consumer complaints.  Mr. Ayazi asked Dr. Lanyon if she understood that the California 
order identifies additional discipline,  which is more than what she referred to and Dr. Lanyon 
stated that she did not have the order in front of her, but that is what she remembered.  Mr. 
Augustin made a motion to deny Dr. Lanyon’s application.  Mr. Ayazi seconded.  Dr. Overland 
asked if the Board would consider obtaining additional information from Arizona.  Mr. Augustin 
withdrew his motion.  Mr. Augustin amended his motion and moved to deny this application and 
that Dr. Lanyon may re-apply.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  
Dr. Lanyon asked what the Board was looking for and Dr. Canada recommended that Dr. Lanyon 
obtain the scope of work and any other necessary information from Arizona. 
 
Agenda Item 8 NCA Report – No action 
 Dr. Marcia Tinberg was present and reported on behalf of the NCA.  Dr. Tinberg stated 
that the NCA’s web-site has been under construction and they have a new mailing address.  Dr. 



July 14, 2022 

Tinberg stated that the NCA will be holding an-person CA exam review on September 3, 2022 
and will be holding a workshop discussing concussion, NTBI and PCS on September 24, 2022. 
Dr. Tinberg stated that the NCA is always working on membership. 
 
Agenda Item 10 Board Counsel Report – No action 

Mr. Ling stated that he had nothing to report. 
 
Agenda Item 11  PUBLIC WORKSHOP:  Will begin at 9:00 a.m. at Zoom  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82200414005?pwd=QVExYnpRVmtheGFKaWJoVktPd21rQT0
9 Discussion to consider amendments to Nevada Administrative Code 634. - For possible 
action. 
 Mr. Ling provided an overview of the revisions made to NAC 634.  Dr. Canada called for 
public comment and there was none.  Dr. Overland moved to approved the revisions to NAC 634.  
Mr. Ayazi seconded and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 12 Discussion and potential action regarding the board examinations being 
psychometrically analyzed – For possible action.   
 Dr. Overland stated that this matter was discussed under agenda item 5, so there is nothing 
further to discuss at this time. 
 
Agenda Item 13 Discussion and potential action regarding whether the Senaptec Unit falls 
under a chiropractic physicians’ scope of practice - For possible action.   
 Dr. Overland stated that following the April 14, 2022 meeting he conducted additional 
research on the Senaptec Unit and based on his findings this unit may be used by chiropractic 
physicians.  Dr. Canada believes that this device falls under physiotherapy.  Mr. Ayazi made a 
motion to add the Senaptec Unit to the list of approved physiotherapeutic equipment.  Dr. 
Overland seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 14 Discussion and possible action regarding chiropractic physicians using the 
designation, Certified Independent Rating Specialist (CIRS) upon mandatory testing 
through the American Academy of Expert Medical Evaluators ( AAEME) – For possible 
action. 
 Dr. Overland stated that the Board previously discussed and approved the use of CICE, 
which is the certification received through ABIME, however the Board did not address the use of 
CIRS, which is the certification received through AAEME.  Dr. Overland made a motion to 
allow DCs to use CIRS.  Mr. Ayazi seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 15  Discussion and potential action regarding Physiotherapeutic Equipment – For 
possible action.   
 Dr. Canada stated that the list of physiotherapeutic equipment was provided for informational 
purposes. 
 
Agenda Item 16 Discussion and potential action regarding the shock wave and pulse wave 
being considered physiotherapeutic equipment – For possible action.   
 Dr. Canada stated that these devices do fall under physiotherapeutic equipment.   
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82200414005?pwd=QVExYnpRVmtheGFKaWJoVktPd21rQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82200414005?pwd=QVExYnpRVmtheGFKaWJoVktPd21rQT09


July 14, 2022 

Agenda Item 17 Discussion and potential action regarding a chiropractic physician 
marketing and advertising with an attorney and sharing expenses – For possible action.  
 Dr. Canada stated that she is not aware of any issues with a chiropractic physician 
marketing and advertising with an attorney and sharing expenses.  Mr. Ayazi agreed, however 
stated that the Bar does have some regulations as it relates to advertising.  Mr. Ling stated that 
there are not any laws that prohibit that a chiropractic physician and an attorney market, advertise 
and share expenses in a joint manner. 
 
Agenda Item 9 NCC Report – No action 

Andrea Waller, Executive Director of the NCC was present and reported that the NCC is 
holding their 7th Annual Convention at the Orleans in Las Vegas, NV on November 29, 2022.  Dr. 
Jay Greenstein and Hannah Simmons will be presenting.  The NCC has the same number of 
members reported at the previous meeting. 
 
Agenda Item 18 Discussion and potential action regarding a chiropractic physician or 
chiropractor’s assistant failing to complete the required hours of Continuing Education by 
December 31 – For possible action.   
 Julie Strandberg explained that the Board packet included a draft of a policy to address the  
random continuing education (CE) audit and the failure to complete the required hours of CE by a 
DC and a CA.  Following renewals, a query will run, randomly selecting 20% of active licensees.  
The selected licensees will receive a postcard at their mailing address on record with the Board as 
well as an email.  Julie explained that if a selected licensee/CA fails to submit their CE 
certificate(s) within 30 days of receipt of notice they will be sent a citation and stated that the 
Board will need to decide the amount to fine the chiropractic physicians and the chiropractic 
assistants. 

Dr. Canada made a motion that the DC pay $100.00 per missing credit, not to exceed 
$1,000.00 and CAs be fined $50.00 per missing credit, not to exceed $500.00 and be given 30 
days to complete the deficient CE(s) from receipt of the citation from the Board.  If a licensee or 
CA does not comply, they will receive a cease and desist and receive discipline.  Dr. Overland 
seconded, but recommended that the DC not to exceed amount be more than $1000.00.  Mr. 
Augustin recommended that the DC not to exceed amount be $1,500.00.  Dr. Canada amended 
her motion to limit the DC fine to $1,500.00.  Mr. Augustin seconded, and the motion passed with 
all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 19 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  
Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is 
no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the 
matter further – For possible action. 
 

A. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti was not present to report. 

B. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti was not present to report. 

C. Complaint 21-01S (Nolle) 
Julie Strandberg stated that the DC provided the necessary documentation to 
thoroughly investigate this complaint and recommended that this complaint be 



July 14, 2022 

dismissed with a letter of instruction.  Dr. Overland moved to dismiss complaint 21-
01S with a letter of instruction.  Mr. Augustin seconded, and the motion passed with 
all in favor.  Dr. Colucci recused herself and stated that she must disclose and abstain 
from participating in this matter due to having information regarding this matter gained 
outside the Board’s proceedings. 

D. Complaint 21-03S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that this complaint is against a DC who had criminal charges 
brought against him and is waiting for the results of the trial. 

E. Complaint 21-29N (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that this complaint is still under investigation. 

F. Complaint 21-31S (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that this complaint is still under investigation. 

G. Complaint 21-32S (Overland) 
Mr. Ling stated that this complaint was against a DC for failure to provide the 
patient their records, the records were requested by the Board and received.  The 
complainant indicated that the records were not accurate, however stopped 
cooperating with the investigation, so a letter was sent to the complainant indicating 
that if they did not respond the complaint would be closed.  Dr. Overland stated that 
after reviewing the records there are issues with the DC’s record keeping and 
recommended that this complaint be dismissed with a letter of instruction.  Dr. 
Canada moved to dismiss complaint 21-32S with a letter of instruction.  Dr. Colucci 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Overland recused himself as 
the investigating board member. 

H. Complaint 22-03S (Overland) 
Dr. Overland stated that the complainant had dual insurance coverage, which would 
cover all services rendered with the exception of supplements.  The DC charged the 
patient for the services, awaiting reimbursement from the patient’s insurances.  The 
DC appropriately reimbursed the patient, so Dr. Overland recommended that this 
complaint be dismissed with a letter of instruction.  Mr. Ayazi moved to dismiss 
complaint 22-03S with a letter of instruction.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion 
passed with all in favor.  Dr. Overland recused himself as the investigating board 
member. 

I. Complaint 22-06S (Overland) 
Dr. Overland stated that this is an advertising complaint against a clinic that has two 
chiropractic physicians.  It was reported that their website indicated that they were the 
best chiropractors in Las Vegas and were advertising credentials that were not 
approved by the Board.  Dr. Overland confirmed that the DC’s had removed the 
statement indicating that they were the best and stated that the DC’s indicated that 
they would remove the credentials until they were approved by the Board.  Dr. 
Overland recommended that this complaint be dismissed with a letter of instruction.  
Mr. Ayazi moved to dismiss complaint 22-06S with a letter of instruction.  Dr. Colucci 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Overland recused himself as 
the investigating board member. 

J. Complaint 22-07S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that the complainant indicated that she had visited three chiropractic 
physician’s and did not receive the treatment expected.  Dr. Canada asked the 
complainant if the chiropractic physician’s recommended other care and she said they 



July 14, 2022 

did, however, she had not sought out other treatment.  Dr. Canada reviewed the 
patient’s records and did not see any issues.  Dr. Canada recommended that this 
complaint be dismissed.  Dr. Overland moved to dismiss complaint 22-07S.  Dr. 
Colucci seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Canada recused herself 
as the investigating board member. 

K. Complaint 22-08S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that this is a new complaint and is under investigation. 
 

Agenda Item 20 FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 
A. District I & IV Meeting – Incline Village, NV Sept. 30 – Oct. 1, 2022 

Dr. Canada asked if there was interest in attending the district meeting.  Dr. Colucci 
recommended that since the district meeting is being held in Nevada that all Board 
members, staff and the Board attorney be able to attend if interested.  Dr. Overland made 
a motion that any and all Board members may attend the district meeting in Incline 
Village, NV.  Dr. Colucci asked if  Dr. Overland would amend his motion to allow staff 
and the Board attorney attend.  Dr. Overland amended his motion to allow staff and the 
Board attorney to attend.  Mr. Ayazi seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 

B. Other FCLB/NBCE matters. 
Dr. Canada stated that the Board packet includes a memo issued by the FCLB regarding a 
lawsuit against them.  Dr. Overland stated that this is just information to disseminate and 
to make the Board aware of this matter. 

 
Agenda Item 21 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to 
NRS 634 and NAC 634– For possible action. 
 Julie Strandberg stated that this is a standing agenda item in the event a Board member 
identifies a change to NRS or NAC 634. 
 
Agenda Item 22 Committee Reports  

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
Dr. Martinez was not present to report. 

B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Overland) – For possible action. 
Dr. Overland stated that he did not have anything further to report. 

C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
Dr. Rovetti was not present to report. 

D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 
Dr. Canada stated that considering our previous conversation with the NBCE regarding the 
exam the workshop will be cancelled until a later time. 
 

Agenda Item 23 Executive Director Reports: 
A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
D. DC licenses to applicants who passed the examination from April to June 2022 – No 

action. 
E. CA certificates to applicants who passed the examination on June 15, 2022.-No action. 

Julie Strandberg gave an overview of the executive director reports. 



July 14, 2022 

Agenda Item 24 Financial Status Reports: 
A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison as of May 31, 2022 – No action. 
F. Budget to Actual at May 31, 2022 – No action. 
G. Annual Board Audit Update – No action 

Julie Strandberg gave an overview of the executive director reports and stated that the 2021 
audit recommended that the Board consider Employee Bond-Crime coverage.  Dr. Overland stated 
that he is in favor of this coverage as a pro-active effort to cover the Board.  Mr. Ling stated that 
since this item was on the agenda as no action, the Board cannot make a motion today.  Julie 
Strandberg stated that this item will be added to the next Board meeting agenda. 
 
Agenda Item 25 Discussion and possible action regarding the staff evaluation for Brett 
Canady  - For possible action 
 Julie Strandberg reviewed the evaluation for Brett Canady and recommended that she 
receive a 5% increase in her hourly wage.  Mr. Augustin made a motion to approve the 5% pay 
increase.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 26 Public Interest Comments – No action. 
In accordance with NRS 241.020 Public Comment will be taken prior to the adjournment of 
the meeting. 

There were no public comments. 
 
Agenda Item 27 Adjournment – For possible action. 

Dr. Overland moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Ayazi seconded, and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 13, 2022    _________________________________ 
      James T. Overland Sr., DC 
      Secretary-Treasurer 
 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 4 Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

A. Strategies 360 – Dan Musgrove 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Dan Musgrove 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 

 
 
 

 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 4 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 5 Discussion and potential action regarding the application for licensure 
of John Parker, DC (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.033 to 
consider the character alleged character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or 
physical or mental health of Dr. Parker). – For possible action.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Please refer to the attached documentation. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 

























































































































































































 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 
 
TITLE: Agenda Item 6 NCA Report – No action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  TBA 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 6 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 7 NCC Report – No action 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY: TBA 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 8  Board Counsel Report – No action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Louis Ling, Esq. 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8 
 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 9 Discussion and potential action regarding the question under NAC 
634.430(1)(b) of when a guardian or co-guardian is acting within his or her authority to consent 
to having a minor in his or her care evaluated and treated – For possible action.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
NAC 634.430 Unprofessional conduct: Interpretation of statutory phrase. (NRS 634.018, 634.030) 
     1.  As used in subsection 10 of NRS 634.018, the Board will interpret the phrase “conduct 
unbecoming a person licensed to practice chiropractic or detrimental to the best interests of 
the public” to include, without limitation: 
     (a) Engaging in or soliciting sexual misconduct. 
     (b) Performing any chiropractic service on a patient who is under the age of 18 years 
without first obtaining the consent of the parent or legal guardian of that patient if the consent 
is required pursuant to NRS 129.030 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 9 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec018
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec018
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-129.html#NRS129Sec030


Legal Guardianship
Last updated 9-1-2022

1. Does the chiropractic physician or office staff in your state confirm that an individual signing as the legal guardian for the treatment of a minor is truly 
the legal guardian?  If so, what is the process in place to confirm? 
2. Does your state provide language in your laws, regulations, policies and/or procedures?
Jurisdiction Q1 Q2
Alabama
Alaska
Ariona
Arkansas Cannot say all do, but some do. This policy/procedure is not referenced in chiropractic laws, rules, policies or 

procedures.
California The California Initiative Act and Rule and Regulations do not 

address this.
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
District of there is no Board regulation or policy on it. See attached. 
Columbia
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisina No laws or rules address this issue.
Maine Unknown No
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota Not under the Chiropractic Practice Act/laws Not under the Chiropractic Practice Act/laws
Mississippi
Missouri
Montanta
Nebraska
Nevada
New 
Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York No, there is no confirmation process in New York State for No

chiropractors or office staff to confirm an individual signing as 
the legal guardian for the treatment of a minor is the true legal 
guardian. If there is concern they should contact law 
enforcement.

North Carolina Not by statute or rule though some may have their own No
procedures.

North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma This is not in the current Practice Act in Oklahoma No.
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota To my knowledge, there isn’t a specific process in place to There isn’t any language in chiropractic laws, regulations or 

confirm this in South Dakota. policies/procedures. 



Tennessee 
Texas 
Utah This is not specified in Utah's practice act/rule
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virgina
Wisconsin
Wyoming I do not know. There are no regulations or policies from the Wyoming Board on this. 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 10 Discussion and potential action regarding the International Academy 
of Neuromusculoskeletal Medicine’s (IANM) recognition/name change of Chiropractic 
Orthopedists. –No action 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   James T. Overland, Sr.,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Please see attached documents noting the name change. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 









 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 11 Discussion and potential action regarding the American Chiropractic 
Associations efforts to support federal legislation – For possible action 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   The attached letter was received from the American 
Chiropractic Association asking for the board’s support of the Chiropractic Medicare Coverage 
Modernization Act, HR 2654 in the U.S. House of Representatives and S. 4042 in the U.S. Senate.  
This legislation will undue 50 years limited Medicare beneficiary access to services provided by 
doctors of chiropractic. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11 



 

  
 
 
July 18, 2022 
 
Dr. Margaret Colucci 
President 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245  
Reno, NV 89502-5000 
Via Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 
 
Dear President Colucci and Fellow Board Members,  
 
As you may be aware, the American Chiropractic Association (ACA) is leading efforts to support 
federal legislation that provides full access to, and coverage of, services provided by 
chiropractors for beneficiaries in federal health insurance programs. Current efforts are focused 
on garnering support of two bills in Congress, H.R. 2654, and S. 4042, commonly referred to as 
the Chiropractic Medicare Coverage Modernization Act. These bills would remove barriers to 
care and support Medicare beneficiaries. 
 
There are several reasons this legislation was introduced, but among the most important is one 
related to a primary function of state regulatory agencies: promoting public safety and 
protecting the public from harm. 
 
On Feb. 7, 2022, The Commission on Combating Synthetic Opioid Trafficking, co-chaired by 
Senator Tom Cotton (R-Ark.) and Congressman David Trone (D-Md.), released its final report in 
which was noted that in the previous 12-month period, “more than 100,000 Americans died 
from drug overdose—more than twice the number of U.S. traffic fatalities or gun-violence 
deaths during that period. The shift from prescription opioids to heroin and then to synthetic 
opioids has proved deadly to people who use drugs...This means that millions are at risk of 
fatal overdose should they consume a counterfeit prescription tablet.”  
 
Among the Commission’s five Pillars of Action is “Pillar 3: The United States must make public 
health demand-reduction approaches central in the fight against opioid trafficking to reduce 
the number of potential buyers.” Here, the Commission recognized the need for a coordinated 
and well-articulated policy that encompasses not only supply reduction but also the demand for 
opioids and the related harms stemming from their use. The Commission urged that the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) take further action in the areas of primary 
prevention, harm reduction, evidence-based treatment (emphasis ours), and recovery support. 
 

mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


American Chiropractic Association 
Page 2 of 4 

 

There is a growing body of research demonstrating a significant reduction in the utilization of 
opioids and associated risks in populations that have robust access to chiropractic benefits.  A 
January 2022 study in the journal Chiropractic Manipulative Therapies states: “The adjusted 
risk of filling an opioid prescription within 365 days of initial visit was 56% lower among 
recipients of chiropractic care as compared to non-recipients. Conclusions: Among older 
Medicare beneficiaries with spinal pain, use of chiropractic care is associated with 
significantly lower risk of filling an opioid prescription.” 

 
A December 2021 study in the journal Spine states: “Among older adults who initiated long-
term care of chronic low back pain with opioids, the rate of adverse drug events was 
substantially higher than those who initially chose spinal manipulation. Adverse drug events 
were more than 42 times higher with an initial choice of Opioid Analgesic Therapy (OAT) 
versus an initial choice of Spinal Manipulative Therapy (SMT).”  In addition, a 2022 study in 
Spine found that “the risk of escalated care is 2.5 times greater when care for back pain is 
initiated with opioid analgesic therapy versus spinal manipulative therapy (SMT).” 
 
Since 1972, Medicare has arbitrarily limited seniors’ access to most services doctors of 
chiropractic (DCs) are allowed to provide. This limitation has persisted for a half century with no 
scientific or valid policy basis. Members of state chiropractic licensing boards should 
understand that DCs are currently not allowed to furnish their patients with existing covered 
Medicare services that fall within their state scopes of practice. This artificial limitation restricts 
chiropractors from providing patients continuity of care as they age into Medicare, putting 
beneficiaries at a distinct health disadvantage. 
 
It is important to note that Medicare policy ignores appropriate state licensing authority 
established by state statute and regulated by state chiropractic examining boards. Doctors of 
chiropractic are licensed in all 50 states as portal-of-entry providers who treat the “whole 
body” and whose scope of practice, as defined by state law in every state, allows for the 
provisioning of a broad range of services. As you are aware, a typical state scope recognizes the 
ability and training of DCs to examine, diagnose, treat, and refer. 
 
The Chiropractic Medicare Coverage Modernization Act, H.R. 2654, and S. 4042 will allow 
Medicare beneficiaries access to the chiropractic profession’s broad-based, non-drug approach 
to pain management, which includes manual manipulation of the spine and extremities, 
evaluation and management services, diagnostic imaging, and utilization of other non-drug 
approaches. As you can see from the above studies, access to chiropractic services has 
become an important strategy in national efforts to stem the epidemic of prescription opioid 
overuse and abuse. 
 
Positive evidence-based outcome and cost-effectiveness studies demonstrate greater patient 
satisfaction, with better results, lower costs, fewer adverse events, fewer opioid prescriptions, 
fewer imaging studies, fewer hospitalizations, and fewer surgeries. Linked below are two 
documents which provide numerous studies in further support of these findings. 
 



American Chiropractic Association 
Page 3 of 4 

 

ACA is dedicated to seeing this legislation become law in support of Medicare beneficiaries to 
ensure they have the option of seeing a chiropractor for care and to ensure that care will be 
covered. To that end, ACA is encouraging members of state chiropractic examining boards, 
individually or as a body, to reach out to and inform members of their state congressional 
delegations that their support of legislation that provides Medicare beneficiaries full access 
to the services of a chiropractor will improve guideline-concordant care resulting in improved 
public safety with reduced potential for harm.   
  
Sincerely, 

 
Michele Maiers, DC, MPH, PhD 
President 
 
 
Research summary: Reduced Costs and Opioids 
Medicare savings summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.acatoday.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/ACA_ResearchSummary_ReducedCostsandOpioids.pdf
https://www.acatoday.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/2654_MedicareSavingsSummaryFlyer2022.pdf


American Chiropractic Association 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 
TITLE: Agenda Item 12   Public Workshop: Preparation and potential revisions to the 
Chiropractic Assistant program. – For possible action 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION:   No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Please see NRS and NAC attached as it relates to 
the CA program.  The highlighted areas address the need for potential revision based 
on Board conversation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12 



  CHIROPRACTIC ASSISTANTS 
Nevada Revised Statutes 

 
NRS 634.123  Chiropractic assistant: Qualification; certification; supervision. 
      1.  The Board may issue a certificate to a properly qualified applicant to perform ancillary 
services relating to chiropractic, other than chiropractic adjustment, under the supervision of a 
chiropractor. The Board shall specify the formal training, including at least 12 months of study or 
the equivalent, which such an applicant must have completed before the Board awards the 
applicant a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant. 
      2.  An application for the issuance of a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant must include all 
information required to complete the application. 
      (Added to NRS by 1981, 1150; A 1997, 2131; 2005, 2730, 2807) 

      NRS 634.125  Chiropractic assistant: Authorized services.  A Chiropractic assistant 
may perform such ancillary services relating to chiropractic as he or she is authorized to perform 
under the terms of a certificate issued by the Board. Those services must be rendered under the 
supervision and control of a chiropractor. 
      (Added to NRS by 1981, 1150) 

      NRS 634.127  Chiropractic assistant: Limitation on number supervised by 
chiropractor.  No chiropractor may supervise more than four Chiropractic assistants at the same 
time. 
      (Added to NRS by 1981, 1150; A 1991, 2084; 2001, 6) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

  CHIROPRACTIC ASSISTANTS 
Nevada Administrative Code 

 
 NAC 634.305  Examination for certification as Chiropractic assistant; passing 
score; failure to pass; failure to appear. (NRS 634.030) 
     1.  At least once each year, the Board will administer an examination to applicants 
for a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant. 
     2.  The examination will consist of the following subjects, including, without 
limitation: 
     (a) Radiographic technology, protection, quality control and positioning of the 
patient; 
     (b) Ancillary procedures and applications relating to chiropractic; and 
     (c) The provisions of NRS and NAC that are related to the practice of chiropractic. 
     3.  An applicant who receives a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book 
examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination is entitled 
to a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant. 
     4.  If an applicant fails to receive a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book 
examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination the first time 
he or she takes the examination, the applicant may retake the examination within 1 year 
without payment of an additional fee. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/61st/Stats198106.html#Stats198106page1150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/69th/Stats199714.html#Stats199714page2131
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/73rd/Stats200526.html#Stats200526page2730
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/73rd/Stats200526.html#Stats200526page2807
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/61st/Stats198106.html#Stats198106page1150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/61st/Stats198106.html#Stats198106page1150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/66th/Stats199110.html#Stats199110page2084
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/71st/Stats200101.html#Stats200101page6
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030


     5.  If an applicant who receives training and employment as a Chiropractic assistant 
trainee pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 
634.355 fails to receive a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or 
a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination after two attempts and 
wishes to continue working as a Chiropractic assistant trainee, the supervising licensee 
must, within 30 days after the date of the notice from the Board of the results of the 
examination, submit a plan for additional training to the Board. The chair of the test 
committee will: 
     (a) Approve or deny the plan; and 
     (b) Determine whether the Chiropractic assistant trainee may continue working as 
a Chiropractic assistant trainee. 
     6.  If, pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 5, the chair of the test committee 
determines that a Chiropractic assistant trainee may continue working as a Chiropractic 
assistant trainee, the Chiropractic assistant trainee may continue working as a 
Chiropractic assistant trainee if he or she: 
     (a) Pursuant to NAC 634.350, submits a new application for a certificate as a 
Chiropractic assistant and pays the required fee; and 
     (b) Provides the chair of the test committee with proof that the Chiropractic assistant 
trainee is enrolled in an educational course in a subject described in subsection 2. 
     7.  If a Chiropractic assistant trainee who has submitted an application pursuant to 
paragraph (a) of subsection 6 fails to receive a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-
book examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination after 
two attempts, the Chiropractic assistant trainee shall not work as a Chiropractic assistant 
trainee until the Chiropractic assistant trainee has received a score of at least 75 percent 
for a closed-book examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book 
examination. 
     8.  An applicant for a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant who fails on two 
occasions to appear for an examination that he or she has been scheduled to take: 
     (a) Shall be deemed to have withdrawn his or her application; 
     (b) Forfeits any application fees paid to the Board; and 
     (c) Must, if he or she has been receiving training and employment as a Chiropractic 
assistant trainee pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 
634.355, cease working as a Chiropractic assistant trainee. 
 If the applicant applies thereafter for a certificate, the applicant must establish 
eligibility for the certificate in accordance with the provisions of this chapter 
and chapter 634 of NRS. 
     9.  As used in this section, “chair of the test committee” means the member of the 
Board who is assigned by the Board to serve as the chair of the committee that is created 
by the Board to administer an examination to applicants for a certificate as a 
Chiropractic assistant. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec350
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634


     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Chiropractic Exam’rs, eff. 5-13-82; A 1-31-94; A by 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, 9-10-98; R095-03, 10-22-2003; R014-10, 5-
5-2011; R064-17, 2-27-2018) 

 

 

  NAC 634.3475  “Detrimental to the best interests of the public” 
interpreted. (NRS 634.030) 
     1.  As used in subsection 10 of NRS 634.018, the Board will interpret the phrase 
“detrimental to the best interests of the public” as applied to a Chiropractic assistant to 
include, without limitation: 
     (a) Unlawful disclosure of information about a patient. 
     (b) Willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare or safety of patients, 
regardless of whether proof of actual injury is established. 
     (c) Engaging in any conduct or verbal behavior that is inappropriately sexual with 
or towards a current patient. 
     (d) Engaging in any conduct or verbal behavior that is sexually or racially 
demeaning or offensive with or towards a current patient. 
     (e) Engaging in or soliciting sexual misconduct. 
     (f) Engaging with a patient in a romantic or dating relationship unless the patient is 
the spouse of the Chiropractic assistant. 
     (g) Use of protected or privileged information obtained from a patient to the 
detriment of the patient. 
     (h) Performing services which the Chiropractic assistant is not authorized to 
perform under the terms of a certificate issued by the Board as provided by NRS 
634.125. 
     (i) Billing or charging a patient for the services of the Chiropractic assistant. 
     (j) Intentionally causing physical or emotional injury to a patient. 
     (k) Aiding, abetting or assisting any person in violating any provision of this chapter 
or chapter 634 of NRS. 
     (l) Engaging in fraudulent or deceitful conduct in the capacity of a Chiropractic 
assistant. 
     (m) Obtaining any certificate through fraud, misrepresentation or deceit. 
     (n) Impersonating an applicant or acting as a proxy for the applicant in any 
examination. 
     (o) Disclosing the contents of an examination given by the Board or soliciting, 
accepting or compiling information regarding the contents of an examination before, 
during or after the administration of an examination given by the Board. 
     (p) Failing to provide the Board or its agents with any documents lawfully requested 
by the Board, whether by subpoena or otherwise. 
     (q) Failing to cooperate fully with the Board during the course of an investigation. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec018
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec125
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec125
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634


     (r) Claiming or making representations of the attainment of any academic degree or 
award not actually received. 
     (s) Disobeying an order of the Board. 
     (t) Splitting fees or giving or receiving a commission in the referral of patients for 
services. 
     (u) The suspension or revocation of a license or certificate or other disciplinary 
action taken by another state against the Chiropractic assistant based on a license or 
certificate issued by that state for an act that would constitute grounds for disciplinary 
action in this State. A certified copy of the suspension, revocation or other disciplinary 
action taken by another state against the Chiropractic assistant based on a license or 
certificate issued by that state is conclusive evidence of that action. 
     (v) Performing a task for which the Chiropractic assistant has not been trained or 
which the Chiropractic assistant is not clinically competent to perform. 
     2.  A supervising licensee is responsible for all of the acts performed by a 
Chiropractic assistant whom he or she supervises. A supervising licensee may be 
subject to disciplinary action for any violations of law or regulation committed by his 
or her Chiropractic assistant. 
     3.  A supervising licensee shall notify the Board in writing of any dismissal of a 
Chiropractic assistant for cause within 10 days after the dismissal. 
     4.  A patient’s consent to, initiation of or participation in sexual behavior or 
involvement in a romantic or dating relationship with a Chiropractic assistant does not 
excuse the conduct of the Chiropractic assistant. 
     5.  As used in this section: 
     (a) “Sexual misconduct” means: 
          (1) Sexual relations between a Chiropractic assistant and a patient, regardless of 
whether the patient initiated or consented to those sexual relations. 
          (2) Conduct by a Chiropractic assistant, in regard to a patient, that is sexual in 
nature, sexually suggestive or sexually demeaning to the patient. 
          (3) The commission by a Chiropractic assistant of one or more of the offenses 
defined in NRS 200.368, 200.730, 201.210 and 201.220. 
          (4) The use by a Chiropractic assistant of deception, misrepresentation or force 
for the purpose of engaging in sexual conduct with a patient in: 
               (I) A clinical setting; or 
               (II) A setting that is used ordinarily for the provision of chiropractic services. 
 The term does not include sexual conduct or sexual relations that take place between 
a Chiropractic assistant and his or her spouse or between a Chiropractic assistant and a 
person who was a patient after the Chiropractic assistant-patient relationship has been 
terminated for a reasonable time. 
     (b) “Sexual relations” means: 
          (1) Sexual intercourse. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-200.html#NRS200Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-200.html#NRS200Sec730
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-201.html#NRS201Sec210
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-201.html#NRS201Sec220


          (2) Any touching of sexual or other intimate parts of a person or causing such 
person to touch the sexual or other intimate parts of the Chiropractic assistant for the 
purpose of arousing or gratifying the sexual desire of either the Chiropractic assistant 
or the patient. 
     (Added to NAC by Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R150-13, eff. 3-28-2014) 

     NAC 634.348  Performance of ancillary services. (NRS 634.030, 634.125) 
     1.  A person who desires to perform ancillary services must obtain a certificate as 
a Chiropractic assistant. 
     2.  A person who holds a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant may perform 
ancillary services, including, without limitation: 
     (a) Administering to patients by means of physiotherapeutic equipment; 
     (b) Taking and developing radiographs; 
     (c) Assisting with the education of a patient concerning his or her health; 
     (d) Assisting a patient with exercise or rehabilitation activities; 
     (e) Taking the history of the health of a patient; and 
     (f) Assisting the supervising licensee with an examination of a patient. 
     3.  A person who holds a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant may take and 
develop radiographs only after the supervising licensee has: 
     (a) Determined that radiographs are appropriate for the patient; and 
     (b) Ordered the person to take and develop radiographs for the patient. 
     (Added to NAC by Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, eff. 9-10-98; A by 
R095-03, 10-22-2003; R101-08, 12-17-2008; R150-13, 3-28-2014) 

     NAC 634.350  Application for certification: Filing; requirements; expiration; 
waiver of requirements. (NRS 634.030, 634.123) 
     1.  An applicant for a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant must file an application 
with the Board on a form furnished by the Board and pay the required fee within 15 
days after the date on which the applicant has begun performing duties as a Chiropractic 
assistant. An applicant who has not begun performing duties as a Chiropractic assistant 
may file an application at any time after completing his or her formal training required 
pursuant to NRS 634.123. 
     2.  The application must set forth: 
     (a) The date of the application. 
     (b) The applicant’s date and place of birth and two personal references based upon 
5 years’ acquaintance. 
     (c) The applicant’s name, age, social security number, sex and current residence. 
     (d) The name and mailing address of the applicant’s current employer, if any. 
     (e) If applicable, the date on which he or she was hired to perform the duties of a 
Chiropractic assistant. 



     (f) Whether or not the applicant has ever applied for certification as a Chiropractic 
assistant in another state. If the applicant has so applied, he or she must state when and 
where he or she applied and the result of that application. 
     (g) If the applicant has been certified in another state, whether any proceeding to 
discharge, dismiss or discipline him or her or other similar proceeding has ever been 
instituted against him or her and the disposition of each such proceeding. 
      (h) Any other documentation. 
     3.  An application expires after 1 year. 
     4.  For good cause shown, the Board may, at its discretion, waive one or more of 
the requirements of this section. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Chiropractic Exam’rs, eff. 5-13-82; A 11-23-93; A by 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, 9-10-98; R095-03, 10-22-2003; R034-05, 
10-31-2005; R101-08, 12-17-2008) 

     NAC 634.355  Certification: Additional requirements; waiver of 
requirements. (NRS 634.030, 634.123) 
     1.  An applicant for a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant must, in addition to 
fulfilling the requirements of NAC 634.350, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board 
that he or she: 
     (a) Is 18 years of age or older; and 
     (b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a 
score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination administered by the Board on 
the provisions of NRS and NAC that are related to the practice of chiropractic. 
     2.  In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1 and NAC 634.350, an 
applicant for a certificate as a Chiropractic assistant must furnish evidence satisfactory 
to the Board that he or she: 
     (a) Satisfies one of the following: 
          (1) Is certified as a Chiropractic assistant by a program for Chiropractic assistants 
that is approved by the Board; or 
          (2) Has had 6 months of full-time, or 12 months of part-time, training and 
employment as a Chiropractic assistant trainee from a licensee. 
     (b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a 
score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination for certification required 
pursuant to NAC 634.305. 
     3.  Evidence of an applicant’s completion of approved training pursuant to 
subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 must consist of a certification by each 
licensee who supervised the work and training of the applicant. 
     4.  The Board may, at its discretion: 
     (a) Waive one or more of the requirements of this section for good cause shown. 
     (b) Upon receipt from an applicant of documentation demonstrating that the 
applicant has received additional formal training, education or experience, grant the 



applicant credit toward fulfilling the requirements of subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) 
of subsection 2. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Chiropractic Exam’rs, eff. 5-13-82; A 7-29-88; 1-31-94; 
A by Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, 9-10-98; R095-03, 10-22-2003; R034-
05, 10-31-2005; R101-08, 12-17-2008; R150-13, 3-28-2014; R064-17, 2-27-2018) 

     NAC 634.357  Adherence to standards of practice; duties to recognize and 
respond to emergencies and demonstrate professionalism. (NRS 634.030)  A 
Chiropractic assistant shall: 
     1.  Adhere to the ethical and legal standards of professional practice for 
chiropractors; 
     2.  Recognize and respond to emergencies arising in the course of chiropractic 
procedures; and 
     3.  Demonstrate characteristics of professionalism. 
     (Added to NAC by Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R150-13, eff. 3-28-2014) 

     NAC 634.360  Employment and training as Chiropractic assistant 
trainee. (NRS 634.030, 634.123) 
     1.  A person may not be employed and trained for more than 15 days as a 
Chiropractic assistant trainee for the purposes of satisfying subparagraph (2) of 
paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 634.355 unless the person, within the first 15 
days during which he or she performs any duties as a Chiropractic assistant trainee, 
applies to the Board by submitting a form provided by the Board. 
     2.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, an applicant for a certificate as a 
Chiropractic assistant who completes training pursuant to subparagraph (2) of 
paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 634.355 shall, upon the completion of the 
training: 
     (a) Apply to the Board to sit for the next scheduled examination; and 
     (b) Submit the fees required by the Board pursuant to NAC 634.200. 
     3.  For good cause shown, the Board may, at its discretion, extend the training 
period of a Chiropractic assistant trainee and authorize the trainee to take a later 
scheduled examination. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Chiropractic Exam’rs, eff. 11-23-93; A by Chiropractic 
Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, 9-10-98; R095-03, 10-22-2003; R034-05, 10-31-2005; 
R101-08, 12-17-2008) 

 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 13 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 
actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  30 minutes 
 

A. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
B. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
C. Complaint 21-03S (Canada) 
D. Complaint 21-29N (Canada) 
E. Complaint 21-31S (Colucci) 
F. Complaint 22-08S (Canada) 
G. Complaint 22-09S (Canada) 
H. Complaint 22-10S (Overland) 
I. Complaint 22-11S (Overland) 
J. Complaint 22-12S (Overland) 

 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 13 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13A Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
A. Complaint 19-12S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13A 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13B Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
B. Complaint 20-01N  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13B 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13C Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
C.  Complaint 21-03S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This complaint is pending the results of the criminal 
lawsuit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13C 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13D Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
D.  Complaint 21-29N  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13D 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13E Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
E.  Complaint 21-31S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13E 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13F Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
F.  Complaint 22-08S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the chiropractor was 
negligent in their treatment and allegedly working outside the scope of chiropractic. 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13F 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13G Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
G.  Complaint 22-09S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal for lack of jurisdiction. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant submitted documentation, which 
appeared to be a civil litigation dispute and did not involve the DC’s acts as a chiropractic 
physician. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13G 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13H Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
H.  Complaint 22-10S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: James T. Overland, Sr., DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This complaint was from the alleged mother of a minor  
who was treated by a chiropractic physician with a consent signed by the individuals aunt.  
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13H 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13I Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
I.  Complaint 22-11S  (Dr. Overland) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the licensed massage 
therapist was performing chiropractic. 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13I 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13J Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
J.  Complaint 22-12S  (Dr. Overland) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY: James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the licensed massage 
therapist was performing chiropractic. 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 13J 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14 FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 

A. Overview -District I & IV Meeting  
B. Other FCLB/NBCE matters. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Dr. Overland and Dr. Canada were in attendance at 
the District I & IV meeting held at the Hyatt, Incline Village, NV. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 15 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or 
amendments to NRS 634 and NAC 634– For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16 Discussion and potential action regarding the need for a Board 
lobbyist. – For possible action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This topic was discussed during the FCLB district 
meeting.  Other states indicated that they do not contract with a lobbyist. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 16 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 17 Discussion and potential action regarding contracting with an 
investigator to investigate the complaints on behalf of the Board. – For possible action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This topic was discussed during the FCLB district 
meeting.  There were comments from other states with respect to appropriateness of Board 
members  investigating their own profession. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 17 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 18 Discussion and potential action regarding Board members to obtain 
continuing education. – For possible action. 

A. Allow CE for attendance at FCLB/NBCE conference(s). 
B. Allow CE for sitting on the Board. 
C. Allow Consumer Member(s)/Attorney CLE for attendance at FCLB/NBCE/FARB 

conference(s) 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This topic was discussed during the FCLB district 
meeting.  Some states allow its Board members to obtain CE for attending FCLB/NBCE 
conferences and for sitting on the Board.  It was also mentioned that this Board could apply 
for CLE through the BAR for an attorney’s attendance at FCLB, NBCE and FARB 
conferences. 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 18 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 19 Discussion and potential action regarding the interpretation of NAC 
634.348(2)(f) and what was intended to be authorized as “assisting the supervising licensee 
with an examination of a patient.” – For possible action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This agenda item was requested by an active DC who is 
inquiring whether an examination of a patient may be performed by the chiropractic assistant 
pursuant to NAC 634.348(2)(f) as long as the DC is in the office.  
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 19 



 NAC 634.348  Performance of ancillary services. (NRS 634.030, 634.125) 
     1.  A person who desires to perform ancillary services must obtain a certificate as 
a chiropractor’s assistant. 
     2.  A person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant may perform 
ancillary services, including, without limitation: 
     (a) Administering to patients by means of physiotherapeutic equipment; 
     (b) Taking and developing radiographs; 
     (c) Assisting with the education of a patient concerning his or her health; 
     (d) Assisting a patient with exercise or rehabilitation activities; 
     (e) Taking the history of the health of a patient; and 
     (f) Assisting the supervising licensee with an examination of a patient. 
     3.  A person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant may take and 
develop radiographs only after the supervising licensee has: 
     (a) Determined that radiographs are appropriate for the patient; and 
     (b) Ordered the person to take and develop radiographs for the patient. 
     (Added to NAC by Chiropractic Physicians’ Bd. by R030-98, eff. 9-10-98; A by 
R095-03, 10-22-2003; R101-08, 12-17-2008; R150-13, 3-28-2014) 

  
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec125


 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 20 Committee Reports 

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Overland) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 20 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 21 Discussion and potential action regarding a contract for audit services 
with Bertrand & Associates. – For possible action. 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Approve the amendment to the existing contract with Bertrand 
& Associates. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Julie Strandberg 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Pursuant to NRS 218G.400 the Board is required to be 
audited by December 1st each year.  The audit is provided to the Legislative Council Bureau 
and the Governor’s Office of Finance. Please see the attached 1st amendment, which extends 
the term to December 31, 2025 and the total contract amount to $31,400.00 to the existing 
contract for audit services with Bertrand & Associates. 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 21 



CETS #:  

Solicitation #:  

 
AMENDMENT # 01 

 
TO CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Between the State of Nevada 
Acting By and Through Its 

 

Agency Name: Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 

Address: 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245 
City, State, Zip Code: Reno, NV 89502 
Contact: Julie Strandberg 
Phone: (775) 688-1923 
Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 

Contractor Name: Bertrand & Associates, LLC 

Address: 777 E. Williams St., Suite 206 
City, State, Zip Code: Carson City, NV  
Contact: Michael Bertrand 
Phone: (775) 882-8892 
Fax: (775) 562-2667 
Email: michael@bertrandcpa.com 

 
 

1. AMENDMENTS.  For and in consideration of mutual promises and other valuable consideration, all provisions of the 
original Contract dated 02/21/2021, attached hereto as Exhibit A, remain in full force and effect with the exception of 
the following: 

 
A. Provide a brief explanation for contract amendment. 

 
This is the first amendment to the original contract which provides audit services on an annual basis. This amendment 
extends the termination date from December 31, 2022 to December 31, 2025 and the maximum amount from 
$12,800 to $31,400.00 due to the continued need for these services.   

 
B. Current Contract Language: 

3. CONTRACT TERM.  This Contract shall be effective as noted below, unless sooner terminated by either 
party as specified in Section 10, Contract Termination.  Contract is subject to Board of Examiners’ approval 
(anticipated to be Date          March 2021           ). 

Effective from: Date  February 21, 2021 Through: Date December 31, 2022 

 

 

Revised:  August 2019           Page 1 of 3 

mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


CETS #:  

Solicitation #:  

 
6. CONSIDERATION.  The parties agree that Contractor will provide the services specified in Section 5, 
Incoporated Documents at a cost as noted below: 

$6,100.00 per Year 

 

Total Contract or installments payable at:  

 

Total Contract Not to Exceed: $12,800.00 

 
 

 
C. Amended Contract Language: 

3. CONTRACT TERM.  This Contract shall be effective as noted below, unless sooner terminated by either 
party as specified in Section 10, Contract Termination.  Contract is subject to Board of Examiners’ approval 
(anticipated to be Date     January 2023                ). 

Effective from: Date  February 21, 2021 Through: Date December 31, 2025 

 

6. CONSIDERATION.  The parties agree that Contractor will provide the services specified in Section 5, 
Incoporated Documents at a cost as noted below: 

$6,200.00 per Year 

 

Total Contract or installments payable at:  

 

Total Contract Not to Exceed: $31,400.00 

 
 

 
2. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS.  Exhibit A (original Contract) is attached hereto, incorporated by reference herein 

and made a part of this amended contract. 
 
3. REQUIRED APPROVAL.  This amendment to the original Contract shall not become effective until and unless 

approved by the Nevada State Board of Examiners. 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this amendment to the original contract to be signed and intend to 
be legally bound thereby. 
 

Revised:  August 2019           Page 2 of 3 



CETS #:  

Solicitation #:  

 
 

  

  
Independent Contractor’s Signature Date  Independent Contractor’s Title 

 
 

  

  
State of Nevada Authorized Signature  Date  Title 

 
 

  

  
State of Nevada Authorized Signature  Date  Title 

 
 

  

  
State of Nevada Authorized Signature  Date  Title 

 
 

   APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS 

Signature – Board of Examiners    

 
 

  
On:  
   Date 

 
 

Approved as to form by:    

  

On:  
Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General   Date 

 
 

Revised:  August 2019           Page 3 of 3 



Bertrand & Associates, LLC 
certified public accountants 
Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants          
                
 
 
 
August 23, 2022 777 E. William St Suite 206 
 Carson City, NV 89701 

Julie Strandberg,  Executive Director    Tel 775.882.8892  
 Fax 775.562.2667 

Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada  
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245 
Reno, NV 89502 
 
RE: Proposal and engagement letter for June 30, 2023, 2024 and 2025 audits 
 
Dear Ms. Strandberg: 
We are pleased to propose and if accepted, confirm our understanding of the services we are to 
provide Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada (Board) for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
We will audit the statement of net assets, statement of revenues, expenses, statement of changes 
in fund net assets and statement of cash flows of the Board as of June 30, 2023. This proposal 
and engagement letter will be for the audit of the years ended June 30, 2023, 2024, and 2025.  
 
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required 
supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
accompany the Board’s  basic financial statements.   As per your request, we will not  include an 
MD & A or the GASB 75 adjustments and disclosures  which will result in a modification of our 
report letter. GASB 68 requires supplementary schedules (RSI)   and as  part of our engagement, 
we will apply certain limited procedures to the Board’s  RSI.  These limited procedures will 
consist principally of inquiries of the  PERS actuary’s report regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation, which management is responsible for affirming to us in its 
representation letter.  Unless we encounter problems with the presentation of the RSI or with 
procedures relating to it, we will disclaim an opinion on it.  The following RSI is required by 
generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures and 
not be audited (GASB 68)  or not be included.   
 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis. (not included) 
2. GASB 68 required supplementary schedules 
3. GASB 75  supplementary schedules.  (not included) 

 
 

Audit Objective 
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your basic financial 
statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles.  Our audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and will include tests of the accounting records and other procedures 
we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion.  If our opinions on the financial 
statements are other than unqualified, we will fully discuss the reasons with you in advance.  
 

Engagement letter  Page 1 
 



We anticipate a qualified opinion as a new accounting standard known as GASB 75 will not be 
applied as the Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP) will not provide the needed actuarial 
information and it is our understanding that the Board will not seek to incur the expense to hire 
an actuarial consultant.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to 
form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a 
result of this engagement. 
 
Management Responsibilities 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including 
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for 
the fair presentation in the financial statements of the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Nevada 
Association of Counties and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, 
cash flows, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Management is 
responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all 
representations contained therein.  You are also responsible for management decisions and 
functions; for designating an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee 
our financial statement preparation services and any other non-attest services we provide; and for 
evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them. 
 
Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to 
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information.  Management is responsible for 
adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in 
the representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the 
government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal 
control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of 
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, 
former employees, regulators, or others.  In addition, you are responsible for identifying and 
ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
 
Audit Procedures—Internal Control 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, 
including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. An audit is 
not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal 
control. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with 
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA 
professional standards. 
 
 

Engagement letter  Page 2 
 



Audit Procedures—Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of the Board’s compliance with the provisions of 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will 
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion. 
 
Audit Procedures-General 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded 
in the accounts and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct 
confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with 
selected individuals, creditors, and financial institutions.  We will request written representations 
from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this  
Inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written representations from 
you about the financial statements and related matters. 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of 
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested.  We will plan and perform the audit to  
obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. 
 
Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we 
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.  In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements, or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, we will inform you of any 
material errors and any fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets than come to 
our attention.  We will also inform you of any violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  Our responsibility as auditors are 
limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we 
are not engaged as auditors. 
 
Other Services 
We will assist you in the preparation of the notes to the financial statements and the adjustment 
for the GASB 68 pension liability and related notes which will primarily be derived from the 
actuary’s report.  We will also assist with footnote preparation. These are non-attest services that 
we will provide.  We will prepare the services in accordance with applicable professional 
standards. You are responsible to oversee this service and have competent staff to review our 
work performed and evaluate the adequacy and results of this service.  We may discover 
corrections to the financial statements that we may not propose that you record and will review 
those with you or your staff. You agree that you will accept responsibility for these services.  
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
Michael Bertrand is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement 
and signing the report.  Our retention policy is to retain audit work papers for seven years after 

Engagement letter  Page 3 
 



 

the close of the audited year.  We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other 
confirmations and schedules we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 
 
We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 25, 2023 and to issue our reports no later 
than December 1, 2023.  Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-
of-pocket costs (such as increased insurance coverage you may require, report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, etc.) and expect the fee to be $6,200. Our standard 
hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of 
the personnel assigned to your audit.  Our invoices for these fees will be rendered as work 
progresses and are payable on presentation.  In accordance with our firm policies, work may be 
suspended if your account becomes nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been 
completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report.  
You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-
pocket costs through the date of termination.   
 
The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and in their providing 
requested information timely and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be 
encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary; we will discuss it with 
you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Board and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us 
know.  If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the 
enclosed copy and return it to us. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Michael J. Bertrand 
Bertrand & Associates, LLC 
 
RESPONSE: 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Board 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
 
Title:_______________________________________ 
 
Date:_______________________________________  

Engagement letter  Page 4 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
TITLE: Agenda Item 22 - Discussion and potential action regarding the board purchasing 

Employee Bond-Crime Insurance coverage – For possible action.  
 
POTENTIAL MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  James T. Overland Sr.,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This is being discussed due to a recommendation from the 
Boards auditor.   
 
Colonial 
Coverage Per Year Per 3-Years 
$200,000 $362.55 $1,033.27 
$250,000 $402.68 $1,147.64 
 
Brunswick - $2,000 deductible 
Coverage Per Year Per 3-Years 
$400,000 $755.00 $2,265.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 22 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 23 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
D. DC licenses to applicants who passed the examination from July 2022 through 

September 2022– No action. 
E. CA certificates to applicants who passed their in-person or on-line examinations 

taken September 13, 2022  – No action. 
F. Board Member Checks – No action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Please see the attached list of chiropractic physicians 
licensed from July through September 2022 and the list of CA applicants who passed their 
examinations on September 13, 2022.  
 
CA On-Line & In-Person = 76% Certified 
CA Exam –   91% passed 
Law Exam – 75% passed 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 23 

 



AGENDA ITEM 23A

STATUS OF PENDING COMPLAINTS – October 13, 2022

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date

19-12S 9/18/2019 Rovetti Alleged unprofessional conduct Pending Court Case $480.00

Alleged unprofessional conduct-practicing below the standards of 
20-01N

Staff: Updates Rovetti care/malpractice Under investigation

21-03S 3/26/2021 Canada DC misrepresented license reinstatement questions. Pending Criminal Case $150.00

21-29N 10/14/2021 Canada Alleged unprofessional conduct Under Investigation

21-31S 11/8/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Under Investigation $2,076.13

22-08S
7/7/2022 Canada Alleged practicing outside the scope of chiropractic Under Investigation

22-09S
7/13/2022 Canada Alleged unprofessional conduct Dismiss

22-10S
7/26/2022 Overland Alleged unprofessional conduct. Dismiss

22-11S
10/4/2022 Overland Licensed Massage Therapist alleged to be performing chiropractic Under Investigation

22-12S
10/4/2022 Overland Licensed Massage Therapist alleged to be performing chiropractic Under Investigation

DORMANT COMPLAINTS:
To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 

Unredeemable  “nsf” check written on Doctor's business account if the licensee requests reinstatement in 
11-23S 11/7/2011 the future

To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 
Possible malpractice if the licensee requests reinstatement in 

13-23N 9/30/2013 the future
Will be addressed if this individual 

18-03S 2/20/2018 Alleged unlicensed practice reappears in Nevada.



  AGENDA ITEM 23B 
 
 
STATUS OF CURRENT DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS at July 14, 2022             
 
Disciplinary Action with Probation 
 
1. Casey D. Robinson, DC, License No. B1263 
 Dr. Robinson was granted a license on September 14, 2007 under the condition that he 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of his Agreement on Conditions for Licensure with 
California and monitoring of his practice by Board-appointed Compliance Monitor, Dr. Jeff 
Andrews.  Dr. Robinson’s 5-year probation with California commenced on February 14, 2006.  
He was required to reimburse the California Board’s costs of $3,103.75 and serve 4 hours per 
month of community service for 2-1/2 years of his probation.  It was subsequently determined 
that Dr. Robinson did not comply with the terms and conditions of his agreement with California.  
This was addressed at the June 4, 2011 meeting and a new Agreed Settlement was approved that 
extends his probation for another five years concurrent with and under the same terms and 
conditions as his settlement agreement with California.  Dr. Robinson was placed in tolling 
status effective November 18, 2015 and has a five-year tolling limit.  Dr. Robinson is current 
and in compliance with the terms and conditions of his California probation per the 
California Board.  Effective June 26, 2021 Dr. Robinson surrendered his California license.  
This Board has confirmed that Dr. Robinson satisfied his California order with the 
exception of passing the law exam and completing his probation period and will revise the 
Nevada Board order and bring it to the next meeting. 
 
2. Michael Milman, DC, License No. B01618 

On October 15, 2020 Dr. Michael Milman entered into Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 
Law, and Order with the Board.  Dr. Milman will  be on probation for five years with a practice 
monitor who will assure compliance with the terms and conditions of the Order.  Dr. Milman 
was ordered to pay the Board's attorney fees and costs incurred in the investigation and 
prosecution of this matter totaling $1,380.00.  Dr. Milman must take and pass the Ethics & 
Boundaries Assessment.  Dr. Milman shall maintain malpractice insurance, obtain and maintain 
all applicable business licensure, whether state, county, or city.  Dr, Milman shall not bill any 
insurances, but work on a cash basis only and cannot accept personal injury cases.  Dr. Milman 
has satisfied all requirements of his Board order, however will remain on probation until 
November 9, 2025.  On April 22, 2022 Dr. Milman began employment with the Joint and 
effective August 26, 2022 has started practice monitoring through Affiliated Monitors. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 23B 
Continued 

 
 
Probation Only 
 

3. Todd Gardner, DC, License No. B00495 
On October 28, 2021 Dr. Gardner appeared before the Board and was granted his license on 

probation with conditions.  Dr. Gardner shall take and pass the Substance Abuse section of the 
Ethics & Boundaries Examination, any violations of the court’s probationary terms shall 
constitute a violation of the probation under which Dr. Gardner’s license was granted, contract 
with the Professional Recovery Network who will provide quarterly reports to the Board, Dr. 
Gardner must provide a quarterly email to the Executive Director reporting his status and Dr. 
Gardner must report any and all violations of this probation to the Board no later than three days 
after the violation occurs.  Dr. Gardner has taken and passed the Substance Abuse section of the 
Ethics & Boundaries Examination.  Dr. Gardner will be monitored and meet monthly with 
Mark Chase with the Professional Recovery Program.  Reports are attached.  Dr. Gardner 
will remain on probation until February 24, 2025. 

 
 
            

Disciplinary Actions with No Probation   
 
  

4. Francis Raines, DC, License No. B0187 
Under the March 12, 2013 Board Order, Dr. Raines shall be monitored by the 

Investigating Board Member, a chiropractic physician, and a mental health monitor for 24 months 
from the date he begins practicing, which occurred on December 8, 2015.  Dr. Raines’ wife is 
serving as the business and financial manager and is currently the only employee.   Dr. Raines 
was ordered to pay a fine in the amount of $20,000.00 and has been making monthly payments 
of $75.00 per month since May 30, 2013 and continues to do so.   The current balance is 
$13,321.00.  Dr. Raines is in compliance with the terms of the Order. 
 

 



PRN AFTERCARE REPORT/NARRATIVE 
July 31, 2022 

 

 
This letter is to verify that Todd Gardener has complied with all the requirements outlined in 
the agreement he entered with PRN and subsequently approved by the Chiropractic Physicians 
Board of Nevada. 
 
 This report covers the period from July 1, 2022, to July 31, 2022.  

 
 Todd's initial diagnosis was problematic alcohol usage. 

 
 Per his treatment plan, Todd meets with me monthly for personal counseling and 

attends weekly peer support. Todd has maintained a positive and grateful attitude 
during our work together. Dr. Gardener attends AA meetings regularly and meets 
weekly with his sponsor. 

 
 No psychosocial or significant stressors are concerning regarding his recovery. I am 

impressed that Todd has made self-care a central theme in his recovery program. 
Todd's attitude is one of gratefulness, and it is filled with positivity about life. 

 
 The State of Nevada is handling random UAs. Todd has tested negative for all 

psychotropics. 
 
 Dr. Todd Gardener is psychologically fit to practice as a medical professional. 

 
Don't hesitate to contact me with any additional questions or concerns. I can be reached at 
(702) 335-9943 or prnmark@pm.me. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Mark Chase 
 
Mark Chase, MA, MBA 
Doctoral Candidate-Neuropsychology 
LCADC (NV 02479-I), CPC (NV CI697), CSAT-I 
Clinical Program Director 
 
 

PRN 
7465 W Lake Mead Blvd., Suite 224 

Las Vegas, NV 89128 
(702) 562-1230 



PRN AFTERCARE REPORT/NARRATIVE 

September 30, 2022 
 

 
This letter is to verify that Todd Gardener has complied with all the requirements outlined in 

the agreement he entered with PRN and subsequently approved by the Chiropractic Physicians 

Board of Nevada. 
 

➢ This report covers September 1, 2022, to September 30, 2022.  

 

➢ Todd's initial diagnosis was problematic alcohol usage. 
 

➢ Per his treatment plan, Todd meets with me monthly for personal counseling and 

attends weekly peer support. Todd has maintained a positive and grateful attitude 
during our work together. Dr. Gardener attends AA meetings regularly and meets 

weekly with his sponsor. 

 
➢ No psychosocial or significant stressors are concerning regarding his recovery. Todd's 

attitude is one of gratefulness, and it is filled with positivity about life. A recent ankle 

injury has posed difficulties for him, but he is staying positive despite most likely having 

surgery soon. 
 

➢ The State of Nevada is handling random UAs. Todd has tested negative for all 

psychotropics. 

 

➢ Dr. Todd Gardener is psychologically fit to practice as a medical professional. 

 
Don't hesitate to contact me with any additional questions or concerns. I can be reached at 

(702) 335-9943 or prnmark@pm.me. 

 

Best Regards, 
 
Mark Chase 

 

Mark Chase, MA, MBA 

Doctoral Candidate-Neuropsychology 

LCADC (NV 02479-I), CPC (NV CI697), CSAT-I 
Clinical Program Director 
 
 

PRN 
7473 W Lake Mead Blvd., Suite 213 

Las Vegas, NV 89128 

(702) 562-1230 



23C
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD

Legal/Investigatory Costs

Year-To-Date
Costs Incurred August to Date Fiscal Year 2022

Advantage Group                                     262.88 2,076.13
Attorney General                                            - 138.93

Total 262.88 2,215.06

Costs Reimbursed Amount Paid Amount Owed
James Overland Jr., DC $                            17,070.98 $                        29,806.38

Totals $                            17,070.98 $                        29,806.38

Pending Transfer
Other Outstanding Items: Received  to Treasurer/Other

Francis Raines, DC $                              6, 679.00  $                        13,321.00 
James Overland Jr., DC $                                        -  $                          7,000.00 

$                               6,679.00 $                        20,321.00



 
            23D 
 

Licensed Chiropractic Physicians’ 
 
 

 
July      August    

  James Wallace Cox III, DC   Carl Lawrence Dimailig, DC 
  Phillip Joseph Hamilton, DC   James Robert Haakenson, DC 
        Patrick Robert Kim 
        Jeffrey Stephen Midgley 
        Emily Faith Richter-Kirk 
        Ashley Nicole Ruff 
        James Andrew Stanley 

September 
  Stuart Cherk-Mun Hui, DC 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
23E 

 
Certified Chiropractic Assistants 

Effective September 13, 2022 
 

 
 

Alatorre Arleene Gonzalez Angie Pedro Pedro Gricelda 
Alcantar Mariela Gonzalez Ilse Peralta Marjourie 
Cappucci Alexandra Guerrero Emanuel Rodriguez Laysa 
Chung Kalen Hoskins Brady Rodriguez Vanessa 
De La Cruz-
Fuentes Arianni Hunt Tyler Rodriguez Marisol 
Dowling Amanda Lapena Reinalyn Sanchez Karla 
Elenburg Jaime Lopez Michelle Simons Jamie 
Estrellas Jennifer McCormick Nicole Sosa-Pedraza Leticia 
Flores-Garcia Cintia Miller Jessica Thomas Ashlyn 
Flores-Ibarra Jessica Nevarez Brianna Young Monique 
Garcia Andrea Olimberio Shane   
Garcia Roxana Ortega Sabrina 

 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 24 Financial Status Reports: 
A. Current cash position & projections – No action.
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action.
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action.
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action.
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison – No action.
F. Budget to Actual – No action.
G. Licensee database update – No action

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 

PREPARED BY:  Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 

MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 

TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 24 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD
BANK BALANCE REPORT

As of August 31, 2022
AGENDA ITEM 24A

CHECKING ACCOUNT 12,882.17
SAVINGS ACCOUNT 617,276.01

SAVINGS ACCOUNT - Restricted 0.00
Paypal 30.00

Total Cash Balance @ 05/31/2020 $630,188.18

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SUMMARY AS OF August 31, 2022

AGENDA ITEM 24B
A/R
Fines 20,321.00
Cost Reimbursements 31,306.00
  Total A/R $51,627.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SUMMARY
As of August 31, 2022

AGENDA ITEM 24C

State Treasurer - Fines collected/payable             6,679.00

Total Accounts Payable $          6,679.00

Extraordinary Items AGENDA ITEM 24D

*Employee Accrued Compensation as of 8/31/2022

Vacation Hours Sick-Leave Hours Comp-Time Hours
Julie Standberg                37.11               1,236.28                                        - 

Brett Canady                    -                        -                                        - 
 



Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada AGENDA ITEM 24E
Income/Expense Report To Budget - ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Period Ending August 31, 2022

v  Actual July 1 thru Aug 31,  Budget FY  Variance 2022 06/30/23 

Revenue
License & Fees                                       48,575                263,941          215,366
Application & Fees                                         8,365                  47,810            39,445
Interest/Gain Loss on Invest                                              67                        -                  (67)
Exam Fees                                            650                  16,667            16,017
Reinstatement Fees                                            140                    7,500              7,360
Miscellaneous                                         2,327                  10,130              7,803
Reimbursement Income                                            750                    7,500              6,750

TOTAL REVENUE                                       60,874                353,548          292,674

Expenses
Background Checks                                         2,926                    9,744              6,818
Banking / Paypal Expenses                                            731                  10,513              9,782
Dues & Registration                                         1,803                    6,553              4,750
Equipment Repair                                             -                        -                  -
COMPUTER: Equipment/Software/Websites                                         2,765                  16,676            13,911
Insurance                                             -                       876                 876
Legal & Professional                                         9,062                  79,205            70,143
Operating Supplies                                            558                    1,953              1,395
Printing & Copying                                            224                    2,880              2,656
Postage                                            158                    3,934              3,776
Casual Labor - Clerical                                             -                    2,000              2,000
Personnel                                             -

Office Salaries                                       20,705                132,885          112,180
Board Salaries                                            750                    4,200              3,450
Board Meeting Expense                                              15                    1,480              1,465
Workman's Compensation                                             -                    1,600              1,600
Retirement - PERS                                         4,093                  37,920            33,827
Employee Insurance - PEBP                                         3,244                  20,075            16,831
Unemployment                                              19                    1,000                 981
Medicare                                            300                    1,740              1,440
Payroll Processing                                              19                       548                 529

Rent                                         2,456                  15,216            12,760
Telephone                                            502                    1,843              1,341
Travel                                             -                  -

In State                                         1,138                    6,400              5,262
Out State                                             -                    8,000              8,000

TOTAL EXPENSES                                       51,468                367,241          315,773
NET RESULT                                         9,406                 (13,693)           (23,099)

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 07/01/22                                     665,662
NET OPERATING RESULT                                     675,068



Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada AGENDA ITEM 24E
Income/Expense Report To Budget - ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Period Ending August 31, 2022

 (Over) / Under  Actual July 1 thru  Actual July 1 thru  Variance FY23 
Budget Aug 31, 2022 Aug 31, 2022 to FY22 

Revenue
License & Fees               215,366                     4 8,575                     3,225                (45,350)
Application & Fees                3 9,445                       8 ,365                     7,260                 ( 1,105)
Interest/Gain Loss on Invest                      (67)                            67                          18                      ( 49)
Exam Fees                1 6,017                          6 50                     1,600                      950
Reinstatement Fees                  7 ,360                          1 40                        800                      660
Miscellaneous                  7 ,803                       2 ,327                     2,622                      295
Reimbursement Income                  6 ,750                          7 50                        150                    ( 600)

TOTAL REVENUE               292,674                     6 0,874                   15,675                (45,199)

Expenses
Background Checks                  6 ,818                       2 ,926                     1,280                 ( 1,646)
Banking Expenses                  9 ,782                          7 31                        704                      ( 27)
Dues & Registration                  4 ,750                       1 ,803                     3,083                   1,280
Equipment Repair                           -                         -                      - 
COMPUTER: Equipment/Software/Websites                1 3,911                       2 ,765                     2,810                        45
Insurance                     8 76                           -                         -                      - 
Legal & Professional                7 0,143                       9 ,062                   11,214                   2,152
Operating Supplies                  1 ,395                          5 58                        753                      195
Printing & Copying                  2 ,656                          2 24                        447                      223
Postage                  3 ,776                          1 58                        176                        18
Casual Labor - Clerical                  2 ,000                           -                         -                      - 
Personnel                           -

Office Salaries               112,180                     2 0,705                   20,664                      ( 41)
Board Salaries                  3 ,450                          7 50                        900                      150
Board Meeting Expense                  1 ,465                            15                          30                        15
Workman's Compensation                  1 ,600                           -                        625                      625
Retirement - PERS                3 3,827                       4 ,093                     4,081                      ( 12)
Employee Insurance - PEBP                1 6,831                       3 ,244                     3,356                      112
Unemployment                     9 81                            19                          37                        18
Medicare                  1 ,440                          3 00                        300                      - 
Payroll Processing                     5 29                            19                            4                      ( 15)

Rent                1 2,760                       2 ,456                     2,403                      ( 53)
Telephone                  1 ,341                          5 02                        307                    ( 195)
Travel                           -                      - 

In State                  5 ,262                       1 ,138                         -                 ( 1,138)
Out State                  8 ,000                           -                     1,244                   1,244

TOTAL EXPENSES               315,773                     5 1,468                   54,418                   2,950
NET RESULT               (23,099)                       9 ,406                  (38,743)

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 07/01/22                    665,662
NET OPERATING RESULT                    675,068



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
TITLE: Agenda Item 25 - Discussion and potential action regarding Board member  

signatures on the wall certificates for chiropractic physicians and chiropractic 
assistants – For possible action.  

 
POTENTIAL MOTION:  Approve to either allow the Board members signatures be 
stamped on the wall certificates or allow Board members to pre-sign the wall certificates 
prior to the names being printed.   
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Due to the time it takes to pass the wall certificates from Board 
member to Board member it would be much more efficient if the Board signatures could either be 
stamped or pre-signed to avoid the delay of the licensee receiving their wall certificate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 25 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 26 Discussion and possible action regarding the staff evaluation and 
potential adjustment of financial compensation for Julie Strandberg  - For possible action 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  James Overland, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item 26 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 27 Public Interest Comments – No action 

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic and may be 
limited to 3 minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 27 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 28  Adjournment – For possible action 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Adjourn the meeting. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 13, 2022 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The meeting should be formally adjourned when all matters 
on the agenda have been addressed. 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 28 


	24  CHIRO FINANCIAL 8-31-2022 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 8-31-22 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 8-31-22

	24  CHIRO FINANCIAL 8-31-2022 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 8-31-22 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 8-31-22

	24  CHIRO FINANCIAL 8-31-2022 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 8-31-22 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 8-31-22

	ADPEFC8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPF67E.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP3A8.tmp
	Sheet1


	Approved: 
	Approved wModifications: 
	Denied: 
	Continued: 
	Approved_2: 
	Approved wModifications_2: 
	Denied_2: 
	Continued_2: 
	Approved_3: 
	Approved wModifications_3: 
	Denied_3: 
	Continued_3: 
	James T Overland Sr DC: 
	Approved_4: 
	Approved wModifications_4: 
	Denied_4: 
	Continued_4: 
	Approved_5: 
	Approved wModifications_5: 
	Denied_5: 
	Continued_5: 


